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Courthouses, wrote John Sherwood in the Washington Star, are usually
built on “the best spot in town™.! The Arlington County Courthouse stands
on high ground less than a mile east of the Potomac.? But only since 1898
has a building been located on that favored spot. In 1870 Alexandria
County (as Arlington then was) did acquire a courthouse, but this was in
Alexandria City, at Columbus and Queen Sts.>

With its courthouse, as with many other things, Arlington has been a
Johnny-come-lately among Virginia counties. When counties began to be
created in Virginia in the mid-17th century, the area that was to become
Arlington was at first included in Northumberland County, 1648, then in
the successively smaller counties of Westmoreland, Stafford, Prince William
and Fairfax. Arlington first achieved an identity of its own in 1789, when
Virginia offered it to the United States to form part of the District of
Columbia.® When the federal government failed to use the Virginia part of
its territory, and the people of the area pleaded for a return to Virginia, it
was retroceded in 1847 as “the county of Alexandria.” And the name was
changed to “Arlington” as late as 1920. So while King William County has a
courthouse that dates back to 1725,° Arlington County’s chief public
building makes its appearance quite late in Virginia history.

During the 17th and 18th centuries Arlington was rural, with a sparse
population. As the 19th century progressed, however, and the population
grew, it became increasingly awkward for county citizens to have to trudge
all the way to Alexandria City with their legal and governmental business.
County officials, such as the Sheriff and Commonwealth’s Attorney, carried
their offices with them, and the Treasurer kept most of his papers in his
home.” Finally, in 1896, the General Assembly of Virginia passed legislation
giving Alexandria County citizens the opportunity to vote whether the
courthouse should stay in Alexandria or be moved to one of three locations
within the county.® The act also provided for a commission to implement
the building of a new courthouse and jail for a sum not to exceed $20,000.
The voters duly acted, on May 28, 1896, and picked alocation in Fort Myer
Heights, on the site of Civil War Fort Woodbury.® Five hundred sixty-one
persons cast ballots. The commission advertised for donations of land and
accepted an offer from the Fort Myer Heights Land Company.!®° A February
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offer ample room in which the County could transact its business. The
County Board had a chamber of its own, a handsome room with a new
mural photograph of Arlington House dominating its rear wall. The Board
met here for the first time on July 2, 1960.* There were offices for the
County Manager, the print shop, the Treasurer, the Personnel Department,
and others of the many activities needed to keep a busy county functioning.
The various courtrooms (Traffic Court, Criminal Court, Circuit Court,
etc.) were scattered among the rooms of the new tower.

The new Courthouse was dedicated on January 14, 1961, with Leo
Urbanske, Chairman of the County Board, as main speaker. Again a box
was enclosed in the cornerstone (which is to the right of the main entrance).
An effort was made to select for its materials portraying present-day life in
Arlington. Articles enclosed included a current map and telephone directory,
a miniature gavel made from wood of the old Courthouse, photographs of
the area adjacent to the Courthouse, plus many other items.*

But even with all the space now available, the Courthouse still could not
house under one roof all the functions of a booming county of 165,401."
The Health Department (now part of the Department of Human Resources)
had its own complex; the Recreation Division and the county libraries had
buildings at various locations, and the county offices have overflowed the
Courthouse into adjacent office buildings. The jail and the Police Head-
quarters again became too small. In 1958 the Police Department moved
into two buildings on N. Uhle St., which proved a security risk because
persons arrested in Arlington had to be taken to two different buildings to
be booked.*® Again the voters were presented with a bond issue for
$4,500,000, to finance a new jail and police headquarters. The new six-
floor facility was dedicated November 1, 1974. County police offices are
located on the lower levels, and the Detention Center, with room for 146
inmates, on the upper level. Both the pamphlet The Arlington jail, a brief
account, 1898-1974 and the program for the dedication ceremony explain
in some detail the aim and functions of the new building. The old jail,
incidentally, on the third floor of the north wing, was made into a home for
the Juvenile and Domestic Relations Court.”

So the 1960 Courthouse moved toward its nineteenth year, no longer the
center for all the county’s governmental activities, but still vital and
important. Unfortunately, the surrounding area does not show it off to
advantage. Typical of the whole heterogeneous community, “Fort Myer
Heights” now surrounds the Courthouse with clusters of banks, small
businesses, lawyers’ offices — and parking lot after parking lot. There is
one small grass plot to the side of the building, graced with a stone
memorial to those who fell in the two World Wars, with all their names
engraved on it. The stone was originally near the Tomb of the Unknown
Soldier in Arlington Cemetery. Mounted on the memorial is a bronze bell,
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